
Board of Directors: 

SEAN DEBLEY, President 
JARED BOUCHARD, Vice President 
KRISTINA BREWER, Director 
MARCIA MARCUS, Director 
BOB NAST, Director 

PETER MARTINEZ 
General Manager 

353 Santa Monica Drive · Channel Islands Beach, CA · 93035-4473 · (805) 985-6021 · FAX (805) 985-7156 
A PUBLIC ENTITY SERVING CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACHES AND HARBOR · CIBCSD.COM 

BOARD OF DIRECTORS 
   REGULAR BOARD MEETING 

NOTICE & AGENDA 
NOTICE IS HEREBY GIVEN that the Board of Directors of the Channel Islands Beach 
Community Services District will hold a Regular Board Meeting beginning at 5:00 P.M. 
on Tuesday, November 9, 2021. In accordance with the Governor’s Executive Order N-
29-20 and the Ventura County Stay Well at Home Order resulting from the novel
Coronavirus the Meeting will be held virtually using the Microsoft Teams platform.

Join on your computer or mobile app 
Click here to join the meeting  
Or call in (audio only)  
+1 213-282-9788,,125117061#   United States, Los Angeles
Phone Conference ID: 125 117 061#

The agenda is as follows: 

A. CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE:

B. PUBLIC COMMENTS:
1. Opportunity for members of the public to address the Board on matters under the
purview of the District and which are not on the agenda. (Time limit 3 minutes per
speaker)

C. CONSENT CALENDAR:

1. Approve the Agenda Order

2. Financial Reports:
a. Cash Disbursal & Receipt Report – October 2021

1

https://teams.microsoft.com/l/meetup-join/19%3ameeting_Zjg5ZmFjZmMtOTQwNi00YTQ3LWIxMmItMzRkZmUyYjljNTlh%40thread.v2/0?context=%7b%22Tid%22%3a%22f7fe391d-f807-4915-a885-600f7b21c060%22%2c%22Oid%22%3a%22a1ff9a26-d5c6-43de-8ae2-ea53c9efed90%22%7d
tel:+12132829788,,125117061#%20


 
 
 

3.  Minutes: 
a. October 12, 2021, Regular Board Meeting 

 
 
4.  Authorize customer request for relief from water charges due to leaks on the 

property consistent with Resolution 16-06: 
 
 

 
 Account Number Water Relief Sewer Relief Total Relief 

a.  09150-04 $146.07 $355.79 $501.86 
    $501.86 

  
 
 

D. CLOSED SESSION: 
 
Public Employee Performance Evaluation (Gov. Code § 54957) 
Title: General Manager 
 
 
 

E. ACTION CALENDAR: 
 
1. Annual Performance and Salary Review of District General Manager. The 
Board will review and consider the General Manager’s performance and 
compensation following closed session performance evaluation. 
Recommendation: 
1) Board Discretion 
 
2. Review and Adoption of Resolution 21-03: ELECTING TO BE SUBJECT TO 
THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEE’S MEDICAL AND HOSPITAL CARE ACT AT AN 
EQUAL AMOUNT FOR EMPLOYEES AND ANNUITANTS 
Recommendation: 
1) Approve Resolution 21-03 
 
3. Overview and Discussion: Senate Bill 1383 – Organic Waste Reduction 
Requirements 
Recommendation: 
1) Board Discussion 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 
 

2



F. INFORMATION CALENDAR: 
 
1. Report from Board Members of any meeting or conference where compensation 
for attendance was received. 
 
 
 

G. BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS: 
 
 
 
 

H. GENERAL COUNSEL & GENERAL MANAGER COMMENTS: 
 
 
 
 
 

 
AGENDA POSTING CERTIFICATION 

 
  This agenda was posted Thursday, November 4, 2021, by 5:00 PM. The agenda is 

posted at the District Office and two public notice bulletin boards, which are accessible 
24 hours per day.The locations include:  

• Hollywood Beach School, 4000 Sunset 
• Corner Store, 2425 Roosevelt Blvd.  
• District Office, 353 Santa Monica Drive 

 
Agendas are also posted on the District’s website at www.cibcsd.com.  
 
 
Peter Martinez 
General Manager 
 
 
 
REQUESTS FOR DISABILITY-RELATED MODIFICATION OR ACCOMMODATION, INCLUDING 
AUXILIARY AIDS OR SERVICES, IN ORDER TO ATTEND OR PARTICIPATE IN A MEETING, SHOULD 
BE MADE TO THE SECRETARY OF THE BOARD IN ADVANCE OF THE MEETING TO ENSURE THE 
AVAILABILITY OF REQUESTED SERVICE OR ACCOMODATION. NOTICES, AGENDAS AND PUBLIC 
DOCUMENTS RELATED TO THE BOARD MEETINGS CAN BE MADE AVAILABLE IN ALTERNATIVE 
FORMAT UPON REQUEST. 
 

3



4



5



6



7



MINUTES OF THE 

CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES DISTRICT 

REGULAR BOARD MEETING, October 12, 2021 
 

 

A.    CALL TO ORDER, ROLL CALL, PLEDGE OF ALLEGIANCE: 

President Debley called the virtual meeting to order at 6:04 P.M. In attendance, Vice 
President Bouchard, Director Marcus, Director Nast, General Manager Peter Martinez, 
Clerk of the Board, Erika Davis, General Counsel, John Mathews, Office Manager, CJ 
Dillon, and Operations Manager Jesus (Chuy) Navarro. 

Director Brewer was absent. 
 

B.      PUBLIC COMMENTS:  

None. 

 

C.      CONSENT CALENDAR:  

Director Nast made the motion to approve the Consent Calendar. Director Marcus 
seconded the motion. The motion passed. 

Debley, Bouchard, Marcus, Nast  4- Yes   0 -No 

 

D. ACTION CALENDAR: 
 
1. CONSIDER AND ADOPT RESOLUTION 21-02 A RESOLUTION OF THE BOARD 
OF DIRECTORS OF THE CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACH COMMUNITY SERVICES 
DISTRICT AUTHORIZING THE REMOTE TELECONFERENCE MEETINGS OF THE 
LEGISLATIVE BODIES OF THE CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACH COMMUNITY 
SERVICES DISTRICT FOR THE PERIOD OF OCTOBER 1st, 2021, UNTIL 
DECEMBER 31st, 2021, IN ACCORDANCE WITH ASSEMBLY BILL 361. 
 
General Manager Martinez explained that the Resolution was a state requirement to 
continue to conduct virtual meetings. There was no public comment. Vice President 
Bouchard moved to approve staff’s recommendation to adopt Resolution 21-02. Director 
Marcus seconded the motion. The motion passed. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE:  
Debley: YES, Bouchard: YES, Marcus, YES, Nast: YES  4 - Yes 0 -No 

8



 
2. 2021 WATER AND SEWER MASTER PLAN  

General Manager Martinez gave a summary of the 2021 Water and Sewer Master Plan. 
Board asked questions. There was no public comment. Vice President Bouchard moved 
to approve staff’s recommendation to adopt the Channel Islands Beach Community 
Services District 2021 Water and Sewer Master Plan. Director Marcus seconded the 
motion. The motion passed. 
 
ROLL CALL VOTE:  
Debley: YES, Bouchard: YES, Marcus, YES, Nast: YES  4 - Yes 0 -No  
 

 

3.  NEW BOARD MEETING START TIME DISCUSSION 
 
General Manager Martinez said that at the August 3, 2021, Special Board Meeting the Board 
requested that the item to possibly change the Regular Board Meeting start time to an earlier 
time than 6:00 p.m. be brought to the Board at this meeting. Board discussion ensued. Vice 
President Bouchard made the motion to move the Regular Board Meeting start time to 5:00 p.m. 
providing enough notification to the public. President Debley seconded the motion. The motion 
passed. 

ROLL CALL VOTE:  
Debley: YES, Bouchard: YES, Marcus, YES, Nast: YES  4 - Yes 0 -No 
 
 
E. OPERATIONS REPORT: 
 
Using a PowerPoint presentation, Operations Manager Navarro presented the month’s 
Operations report. The Operations report included two service installation projects on 
Ocean Drive, wet well entry at B Station, potholing part of the easement abandonment 
project, repair of a service leak on Ocean Drive, and continuation of the valve exercising 
project throughout the District. 
 
 
F. INFORMATION CALENDAR: 
 
1. General Manager’s evaluation paperwork has been distributed to the Board and 
needs to be completed by the November 9, 2021, Regular Board Meeting. 
 

The General Manager’s evaluation paperwork should be returned to the President by 
October 26, 2021. President and Vice President of the Board will then discuss and meet 
in preparation for the November 9, 2021, Regular Board Meeting.  
 
 

9



2. Report from Board Members for any meeting or conference where compensation for 
attendance was received. 

President Debley reported at the September 20th PHWA meeting there was discussion 
regarding hiring a structural engineer regarding the storage tank. They also adopted the 
water shortage contingency plan and adopted a resolution that supports the plan. 

 
G.  BOARD MEMBER COMMENTS: 
 
Vice President Bouchard encouraged the Board to attend the United Conservation 
District Water Sustainability Summit that can be attended either in person or remotely.  
 
Director Marcus inquired about the building and site redevelopment project. 
 
President Debley said that the County Integrated Waste Management Board did a 
receive and file related to SB 1383. There was an informative video presented by Cal 
Recycle. They are going back to the Board with their Ordinance in November with the 
implementation of SB 1383. 
 
 

H.  GENERAL COUNSEL & GENERAL MANAGER COMMENTS: 
 
General Manager Martinez said the Ad Hoc Site Redevelopment Committee met once 
regarding the building project. The result was they asked the architect to go back and 
build a more simplified version of the two-story building. There will be a second Ad Hoc 
Committee meeting. After the second Ad Hoc Committee meeting, the latest information 
will be presented to the Board at a Regular Board Meeting. 
 
General Manager Martinez said he will bring updated information regarding SB 1383 at 
the November Regular Board Meeting. 
 
General Manager Martinez announced that the PHWA meetings will return to being held 
remotely.  
 
General Counsel updated the Board on the adjudication stating the case was assigned 
to Judge Anderle from Santa Barbara County.  
  
  
The Board Meeting adjourned at 7:16 P.M. 

_______________________________________________                                    

Sean Debley, President                                                                                                  

10



Board of Directors: 

SEAN DEBLEY, President 
JARED BOUCHARD, Vice President 
KRISTINA BREWER, Director 
MARCIA MARCUS, Director 
BOB NAST, Director 

Peter Martinez 
General Manager 

353 Santa Monica Drive · Channel Islands Beach, CA · 93035-4473 · (805) 985-6021 · FAX (805) 985-7156 
A PUBLIC ENTITY SERVING CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACHES AND HARBOR · CIBCSD.COM 

Regular Board Meeting November 9, 2021 
To: 
From: 
Subject: 

Item:  

Board of Directors 
CJ Dillon, Office Manager 
Review and Adoption of Resolution 21-03 
ELECTING TO BE SUBJECT TO THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEE’S MEDICAL AND HOSPITAL 
CARE ACT AT AN EQUAL AMOUNT FOR EMPLOYEES AND ANNUITANTS 
E-2

RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution 21-03 
FINANCIAL IMPACT: Possible increase to District Medical Insurance in the future, 
depending on retirees use of CalPERS as supplemental insurance with their Medicare.  

BACKGROUND: 
Channel Islands Beach Community Services District originally contracted for health coverage as a Special 
District in 1987, and currently has a Non-CalPERS Health Contract. (Non-CalPERS Health Contract is for 
agencies that do not participate in CalPERS or CalSTRS pension but have some other qualified retirement 
system.) CalPERS recently became aware that the District joined CalPERS retirement in 2018 which gives 
our employees the CalPERS membership option. 

Consequently, we need to correct our health coverage from a Non-CalPERS Health Contract to a CalPERS 
Health Contract. This requires the District to file and submit a new health resolution. This resolution 
should have been done when the District joined the retirement program but was overlooked by CalPERS. 

Once the CalPERS Health Contract is created and health appointments are moved, the Non-CalPERS 
Health Contract will be closed. Billing wise, we will see no difference, and continue to be billed at the full 
premium for active employees. However, once we have a retiree, we will only be billed the employer 
contribution for the retiree, and the member share will be deducted directly from the retiree’s CalPERS 
monthly retirement warrant. 

ATTACHMENTS: 
1. Resolution 21-03 ELECTING TO BE SUBJECT TO THE PUBLIC EMPLOYEE’S

MEDICAL AND HOSPITAL CARE ACT AT AN EQUAL AMOUNT FOR EMPLOYEES
AND ANNUITANTS

11



12



13



 

Board of Directors: 
 
SEAN DEBLEY, President 
JARED BOUCHARD, Vice President 
KRISTINA BREWER, Director 
MARCIA MARCUS, Director 
BOB NAST, Director 
 
PETER MARTINEZ 
General Manager 
 

353 Santa Monica Drive · Channel Islands Beach, CA · 93035-4473 · (805) 985-6021 · FAX (805) 985-7156 
A PUBLIC ENTITY SERVING CHANNEL ISLANDS BEACHES AND HARBOR · CIBCSD.COM 

 

Member of: Association of California Water Agencies · ACWA Joint Powers Insurance Authority · Association of Water Agencies 
of Ventura County · Ventura County Special Districts Association · Ventura Regional Sanitation District 

Regular Board Meeting, November 9, 2021 
 
To:  Board of Directors 
From:  Peter Martinez, General Manager 
Subject:  Overview and Discussion: Senate Bill 1383 – Organic Waste Reduction 

Requirements 
Item No.  E-3 
 
 
RECOMMENDATION:  
  
Board Discussion of Senate Bill 1383. 

 
BACKGROUND: 
 

Senate Bill 1383 (SB 1383) was enacted on September 19, 2016, and addresses short-lived 
climate pollutants, namely methane emissions created by dairy and livestock as well as organic 
waste. Organic waste is food waste, green waste, landscape and pruning waste, nonhazardous 
wood waste, and food-soiled paper waste that is mixed with food waste. Landfilling organic waste 
leads to the anaerobic breakdown of that material, which creates methane. Landfills are 
responsible for 21% of the state’s methane emissions while organic waste comprises two-thirds 
of California’ s waste stream. 

SB 1383 is the most significant waste reduction mandate to be adopted in California in the last 30 
years. SB 1383 requires statewide organic waste (food waste, green waste, food-soiled paper 
products, etc.) disposal reduction of 75% by the year 2025. The mandated percentage reduction 
equates to 20 million tons of organic waste generated within the State. SB 1383 also sets a goal 
of recovering 20% of edible food for human consumption by 2025. This bill authorizes the State 
Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery (Cal Recycle) to adopt regulations to achieve 
these targets which will take effect on January 1, 2022.  

 

DISCUSSION: 

The District’s responsibilities will include the following: 

• Provide organic waste collection to all residents and businesses 
• Establish an edible food recovery program that recovers edible food from the waste stream 
• Conduct outreach and education  

14



• Capacity Planning (evaluating the District’s local readiness to manage organics and 
recover edible food waste) 

• Maintain accurate and timely records of SB 1383 compliance 
• Adopt or amend current Ordinance to comply with SB 1383 

 

ALTERNATIVE OPTIONS 

• Pursue a waiver (low population) 
• File a Notice of Intent to comply pursuant to SB 619 

 

 

ATTACHMENTS: 

1. SENATE BILL 1383 
2. SENATE BILL 619 

 
 

15



Senate Bill No. 1383

CHAPTER 395

An act to add Sections 39730.5, 39730.6, 39730.7, and 39730.8 to the
Health and Safety Code, and to add Chapter 13.1 (commencing with Section
42652) to Part 3 of Division 30 of the Public Resources Code, relating to
methane emissions.

[Approved by Governor September 19, 2016. Filed with
Secretary of State September 19, 2016.]

legislative counsel
’
s digest

SB 1383, Lara. Short-lived climate pollutants: methane emissions: dairy
and livestock: organic waste: landfills.

(1)  The California Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006 designates
the State Air Resources Board as the state agency charged with monitoring
and regulating sources of emissions of greenhouse gases. The state board
is required to approve a statewide greenhouse gas emissions limit equivalent
to the statewide greenhouse gas emissions level in 1990 to be achieved by
2020. The state board is also required to complete a comprehensive strategy
to reduce emissions of short-lived climate pollutants, as defined, in the state.

This bill would require the state board, no later than January 1, 2018, to
approve and begin implementing that comprehensive strategy to reduce
emissions of short-lived climate pollutants to achieve a reduction in methane
by 40%, hydrofluorocarbon gases by 40%, and anthropogenic black carbon
by 50% below 2013 levels by 2030, as specified. The bill also would
establish specified targets for reducing organic waste in landfills.

This bill would require the state board, in consultation with the Department
of Food and Agriculture, to adopt regulations to reduce methane emissions
from livestock manure management operations and dairy manure
management operations, as specified. The bill would require the state board
to take certain actions prior to adopting those regulations. This bill would
require the regulations to take effect on or after January 1, 2024, if the state
board, in consultation with the department, makes certain determinations.

This bill would require the state board, the Public Utilities Commission,
and the State Energy Resources Conservation and Development Commission
to undertake various actions related to reducing short-lived climate pollutants
in the state. The bill would require state agencies to consider and, as
appropriate, adopt policies and incentives to significantly increase the
sustainable production and use of renewable gas.

(2)  The California Integrated Waste Management Act of 1989, which is
administered by the Department of Resources Recycling and Recovery,
establishes an integrated waste management program that requires each

93

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

AUTHENTICATED 
ELECTRONIC LEGAL MATERIAL

16



county and city and county to prepare and submit to the department a
countywide integrated waste management plan.

The bill would require the department, in consultation with the state board,
to adopt regulations that achieve the specified targets for reducing organic
waste in landfills. The bill would authorize local jurisdictions to charge and
collect fees to recover the local jurisdiction’s costs incurred in complying
with the regulations. The bill would require, no later than July 1, 2020, the
department, in consultation with the state board, to analyze the progress
that the waste sector, state government, and local governments have made
in achieving the specified targets for reducing organic waste in landfills.
The bill would authorize the department, depending on the outcome of that
analysis, to amend the regulations to include incentives or additional
requirements, as specified. By adding to the duties of local governments
related to organic waste in landfills, this bill would impose a state-mandated
local program.

(3)  The California Constitution requires the state to reimburse local
agencies and school districts for certain costs mandated by the state. Statutory
provisions establish procedures for making that reimbursement.

This bill would provide that no reimbursement is required by this act for
a specified reason.

The people of the State of California do enact as follows:

SECTION 1. (a)  The Legislature finds and declares all of the following:
(1)  Short-lived climate pollutants, such as black carbon, fluorinated gases,

and methane, are powerful climate forcers that have a dramatic and
detrimental effect on air quality, public health, and climate change.

(2)  These pollutants create a warming influence on the climate that is
many times more potent than that of carbon dioxide.

(3)  Short-lived climate pollutants that are toxic air contaminants also are
a significant environmental risk factor for premature death.

(4)  Reducing emissions of these pollutants can have an immediate
beneficial impact on climate change and on public health.

(5)  To the extent possible, efforts to reduce emissions of short-lived
climate pollutants should focus on areas of the state that are
disproportionately affected by poor air quality.

(b)  It is the intent of the Legislature to support the adoption of policies
that improve organics recycling and innovative, cost effective, and
environmentally beneficial uses of biomethane derived from solid waste
facilities.

(c)  It is intent of the Legislature that the disposal reduction targets
established pursuant to Section 39730.6 of the Health and Safety Code shall
serve as a statewide average target and not as a minimum requirement for
each jurisdiction.

SEC. 2. Section 39730.5 is added to the Health and Safety Code, to read:

93

— 2 —Ch. 395

17



39730.5. (a)  No later than January 1, 2018, the state board shall approve
and begin implementing the comprehensive short-lived climate pollutant
strategy developed pursuant to Section 39730 to achieve a reduction in the
statewide emissions of methane by 40 percent, hydrofluorocarbon gases by
40 percent, and anthropogenic black carbon by 50 percent below 2013 levels
by 2030.

(b)  Prior to approving the short-lived climate pollutant strategy pursuant
to subdivision (a), the state board shall do all of the following:

(1)  Coordinate with other state and local agencies and districts to develop
measures identified as part of the strategy.

(2)  Provide a forum for public engagement by holding at least three
public hearings in geographically diverse locations throughout the state.

(3)  Evaluate the best-available scientific, technological, and economic
information to ensure that the strategy is cost effective and technologically
feasible.

(4)  Incorporate and prioritize, as appropriate, measures and actions that
provide the following cobenefits:

(A)  Job growth and local economic benefits in the state.
(B)  Public health benefits.
(C)  Potential for new innovation in technology, energy, and resource

management practices.
(c)  The state board shall publicly notice the strategy described in

subdivision (a) and post a copy of that strategy on the state board’s Internet
Web site at least one month prior to the state board approving the strategy
pursuant to subdivision (a).

SEC. 3. Section 39730.6 is added to the Health and Safety Code, to read:
39730.6. (a)  Consistent with Section 39730.5, methane emissions

reduction goals shall include the following targets to reduce the landfill
disposal of organics:

(1)  A 50-percent reduction in the level of the statewide disposal of organic
waste from the 2014 level by 2020.

(2)  A 75-percent reduction in the level of the statewide disposal of organic
waste from the 2014 level by 2025.

(b)  Except as provided in this section and Section 42652.5 of the Public
Resources Code, the state board shall not adopt, prior to January 1, 2025,
requirements to control methane emissions associated with the disposal of
organic waste in landfills other than through landfill methane emissions
control regulations.

SEC. 4. Section 39730.7 is added to the Health and Safety Code, to read:
39730.7. (a)  For purposes of this section, the following terms have the

following meanings:
(1)  “Department” means the Department of Food and Agriculture.
(2)  “Commission” means the Public Utilities Commission.
(3)  “Energy commission” means the State Energy Resources Conservation

and Development Commission.
(4)  “Strategy” means the strategy to reduce short-lived climate pollutants

developed pursuant to Section 39730.

93

Ch. 395— 3 —

18



(b)  (1)  The state board, in consultation with the department, shall adopt
regulations to reduce methane emissions from livestock manure management
operations and dairy manure management operations, consistent with this
section and the strategy, by up to 40 percent below the dairy sector’s and
livestock sector’s 2013 levels by 2030.

(2)  Prior to adopting regulations pursuant to paragraph (1), the state board
shall do all of the following:

(A)  Work with stakeholders to identify and address technical, market,
regulatory, and other challenges and barriers to the development of dairy
methane emissions reduction projects. The group of stakeholders shall
include a broad range of stakeholders involved in the development of dairy
methane reduction projects, including, but not limited to, project developers,
dairy and livestock industry representatives, state and local permitting
agencies, energy agency representatives, compost producers with experience
composting dairy manure, environmental and conservation stakeholders,
public health experts, and others with demonstrated expertise relevant to
the success of dairy methane emissions reduction efforts.

(B)  Provide a forum for public engagement by holding at least three
public meetings in geographically diverse locations throughout the state
where dairy operations and livestock operations are present.

(C)  In consultation with the department, do both of the following:
(i)  Conduct or consider livestock and dairy operation research on dairy

methane emissions reduction projects, including, but not limited to, scrape
manure management systems, solids separation systems, and enteric
fermentation.

(ii)  Consider developing and adopting methane emissions reduction
protocols.

(3)  The state board shall make available to the public by posting on its
Internet Web site a report on the progress made in implementing paragraph
(2). Pursuant to Section 9795 of the Government Code, the state board shall
notify the Legislature of the report.

(4)  Notwithstanding the Administrative Procedure Act (Chapter 3.5
(commencing with Section 11340) of Part 1 of Division 3 of Title 2 of the
Government Code), the regulations adopted pursuant to paragraph (1) shall
be implemented on or after January 1, 2024, if the state board, in consultation
with the department, determines all of the following:

(A)  The regulations are technologically feasible.
(B)  The regulations are economically feasible considering milk and live

cattle prices and the commitment of state, federal, and private funding,
among other things, and that markets exist for the products generated by
dairy manure management and livestock manure management methane
emissions reduction projects, including composting, biomethane, and other
products. The analysis shall include consideration of both of the following:

(i)  Electrical interconnection of onsite electrical generation facilities
using biomethane.

(ii)  Access to common carrier pipelines available for the injection of
digester biomethane.

93

— 4 —Ch. 395

19



(C)  The regulations are cost effective.
(D)  The regulations include provisions to minimize and mitigate potential

leakage to other states or countries, as appropriate.
(E)  The regulations include an evaluation of the achievements made by

incentive-based programs.
(c)  No later than July 1, 2020, the state board, in consultation with the

department, shall analyze the progress the dairy and livestock sector has
made in achieving the goals identified in the strategy and specified in
paragraph (1) of subdivision (b). The analysis shall determine if sufficient
progress has been made to overcome technical and market barriers, as
identified in the strategy. If the analysis determines that progress has not
been made in meeting the targets due to insufficient funding or technical or
market barriers, the state board, in consultation with the department and
upon consultation with stakeholders, may reduce the goal in the strategy
for the dairy and livestock sectors, as identified pursuant to paragraph (1).

(d)  (1)  (A)  No later than January 1, 2018, the state board, in consultation
with the commission and the energy commission, shall establish energy
infrastructure development and procurement policies needed to encourage
dairy biomethane projects to meet the goal identified pursuant to paragraph
(1) of subdivision (b).

(B)  The state board shall develop a pilot financial mechanism to reduce
the economic uncertainty associated with the value of environmental credits,
including credits pursuant to the Low-Carbon Fuel Standard regulations
(Subarticle 7 (commencing with Section 95480) of Title 17 of the California
Code of Regulations) from dairy-related projects producing low-carbon
transportation fuels. The state board shall make recommendations to the
Legislature for expanding this mechanism to other sources of biogas.

(2)  No later than January 1, 2018, the commission, in consultation with
the state board and the department, shall direct gas corporations to implement
not less than five dairy biomethane pilot projects to demonstrate
interconnection to the common carrier pipeline system. For the purposes of
these pilot projects, gas corporations may recover in rates the reasonable
cost of pipeline infrastructure developed pursuant to the pilot projects.

(e)  No later than January 1, 2018, the state board shall provide guidance
on credits generated pursuant to the Low-Carbon Fuel Standard regulations
(Subarticle 7 (commencing with Section 95480) of Title 17 of the California
Code of Regulations) and the market-based compliance mechanism
developed pursuant to Part 5 (commencing with Section 38570) of Division
25.5 from the methane reduction protocols described in the strategy and
shall ensure that projects developed before the implementation of regulations
adopted pursuant to subdivision (b) receive credit for at least 10 years.
Projects shall be eligible for an extension of credits after the first 10 years
to the extent allowed by regulations adopted pursuant to the California
Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006 (Division 25.5 (commencing with
Section 38500)).

(f)  Enteric emissions reductions shall be achieved only through
incentive-based mechanisms until the state board, in consultation with the

93

Ch. 395— 5 —

20



department, determines that a cost-effective, considering the impact on
animal productivity, and scientifically proven method of reducing enteric
emissions is available and that adoption of the enteric emissions reduction
method would not damage animal health, public health, or consumer
acceptance. Voluntary enteric emissions reductions may be used toward
satisfying the goals of this chapter.

(g)  Except as provided in this section, the state board shall not adopt
methane emissions reduction regulations controlling the emissions of
methane from dairy operations or livestock operations to achieve the 2020
and 2030 greenhouse gas emissions reduction goals established pursuant to
the California Global Warming Solutions Act of 2006 (Division 25.5
(commencing with Section 38500)).

(h)  Nothing in this section shall limit the authority of the state board to
acquire planning and baseline information, including requiring the
monitoring and reporting of emissions.

(i)  This section does not in any way affect the state board’s or districts’
authority to regulate emissions of criteria pollutants, toxic air contaminants,
or other pollutants pursuant to other provisions of this division.

SEC. 5. Section 39730.8 is added to the Health and Safety Code, to read:
39730.8. (a)  For purposes of this section, the following terms have the

following meanings:
(1)  “Commission” means the Public Utilities Commission.
(2)  “Energy commission” means the State Energy Resources Conservation

and Development Commission.
(3)  “Strategy” means the strategy to reduce short-lived climate pollutants

developed pursuant to Section 39730.
(b)  The energy commission, in consultation with the state board and the

commission, shall develop recommendations for the development and use
of renewable gas, including biomethane and biogas, as a part of its 2017
Integrated Energy Policy Report prepared pursuant to Section 25302 of the
Public Resources Code. In developing the recommendations, the energy
commission shall identify cost-effective strategies that are consistent with
existing state policies and climate change goals by considering priority end
uses of renewable gas, including biomethane and biogas, and their
interactions with state policies, including biomethane and all of the
following:

(1)  The Renewables Portfolio Standard program (Article 16 (commencing
with Section 399.11) of Chapter 2.3 of Part 1 of Division 1 of the Public
Utilities Code).

(2)  The Low-Carbon Fuel Standard regulations (Subarticle 7
(commencing with Section 95480) of Title 17 of the California Code of
Regulations).

(3)  Waste diversion goals established pursuant to Division 30
(commencing with Section 40000) of the Public Resources Code.

(4)  The market-based compliance mechanism developed pursuant to Part
5 (commencing with Section 38570) of Division 25.5.

(5)  The strategy.

93

— 6 —Ch. 395

21



(c)  Based on the recommendations developed pursuant to subdivision
(b), and to meet the state’s climate change, renewable energy, low-carbon
fuel, and short-lived climate pollutants goals, including black carbon, landfill
diversion, and dairy methane targets identified in the strategy, state agencies
shall consider and, as appropriate, adopt policies and incentives to
significantly increase the sustainable production and use of renewable gas,
including biomethane and biogas.

(d)  Based on the recommendations developed pursuant to subdivision
(b), the commission, in consultation with the energy commission and the
state board, shall consider additional policies to support the development
and use in the state of renewable gas, including biomethane and biogas, that
reduce short-lived climate pollutants in the state.

(e)  In implementing this section, priority shall be given to fuels with the
greatest greenhouse gas emissions benefits, including the consideration of
carbon intensity and reduction in short-lived climate pollutants, as
appropriate.

SEC. 6. Chapter 13.1 (commencing with Section 42652) is added to Part
3 of Division 30 of the Public Resources Code, to read:

Chapter  13.1.  Short-Lived Climate Pollutants

42652. The Legislature finds and declares all of the following:
(a)  The organic disposal reduction targets are essential to achieving the

statewide recycling goal identified in Section 41780.01.
(b)  Achieving organic waste disposal reduction targets requires significant

investment to develop organics recycling capacity.
(c)  More robust state and local funding mechanisms are needed to support

the expansion of organics recycling capacity.
42652.5. (a)  The department, in consultation with the State Air

Resources Board, shall adopt regulations to achieve the organic waste
reduction goals for 2020 and 2025 established in Section 39730.6 of the
Health and Safety Code. The regulations shall comply with all of the
following:

(1)  May require local jurisdictions to impose requirements on generators
or other relevant entities within their jurisdiction and may authorize local
jurisdictions to impose penalties on generators for noncompliance.

(2)  Shall include requirements intended to meet the goal that not less
than 20 percent of edible food that is currently disposed of is recovered for
human consumption by 2025.

(3)  Shall not establish a numeric organic waste disposal limit for
individual landfills.

(4)  May include different levels of requirements for local jurisdictions
and phased timelines based upon their progress in meeting the organic waste
reduction goals for 2020 and 2025 established in Section 39730.6 of the
Health and Safety Code. The department shall base its determination of
progress on relevant factors, including, but not limited to, reviews conducted

93

Ch. 395— 7 —

22



pursuant to Section 41825, the amount of organic waste disposed compared
to the 2014 level, per capita disposal rates, the review required by Section
42653, and other relevant information provided by a jurisdiction.

(5)  May include penalties to be imposed by the department for
noncompliance. If penalties are included, they shall not exceed the amount
authorized pursuant to Section 41850.

(6)  Shall take effect on or after January 1, 2022, except the imposition
of penalties pursuant to paragraph (1) shall not take effect until two years
after the effective date of the regulations.

(b)  A local jurisdiction may charge and collect fees to recover the local
jurisdiction’s costs incurred in complying with the regulations adopted
pursuant to this section.

42653. (a)  No later than July 1, 2020, the department, in consultation
with the State Air Resources Board, shall analyze the progress that the waste
sector, state government, and local governments have made in achieving
the organic waste reduction goals for 2020 and 2025 established in Section
39730.6 of the Health and Safety Code. The analysis shall include all of the
following:

(1)  The status of new organics recycling infrastructure development,
including the commitment of state funding and appropriate rate increases
for solid waste and recycling services to support infrastructure expansion.

(2)  The progress in reducing regulatory barriers to the siting of organics
recycling facilities and the timing and effectiveness of policies that will
facilitate the permitting of organics recycling infrastructure.

(3)  The status of markets for the products generated by organics recycling
facilities, including cost-effective electrical interconnection and common
carrier pipeline injection of digester biomethane and the status of markets
for compost, biomethane, and other products from the recycling of organic
waste.

(b)  If the department determines that significant progress has not been
made on the items analyzed pursuant to subdivision (a), the department may
include incentives or additional requirements in the regulations described
in Section 42652 to facilitate progress towards achieving the organic waste
reduction goals for 2020 and 2025 established in Section 39730.6 of the
Health and Safety Code. The department may, upon consultation with
stakeholders, recommend to the Legislature revisions to those organic waste
reduction goals.

42654. This chapter shall not limit the authority of a local jurisdiction
to adopt, implement, or enforce requirements in addition to those set forth
in the regulations adopted pursuant to this chapter.

SEC. 7. No reimbursement is required by this act pursuant to Section 6
of Article XIII B of the California Constitution because a local agency or
school district has the authority to levy service charges, fees, or assessments
sufficient to pay for the program or level of service mandated by this act,
within the meaning of Section 17556 of the Government Code.

O

93

— 8 —Ch. 395

23



Senate Bill No. 619 

CHAPTER 508 

An act to amend Section 42652.5 of the Public Resources Code, relating 
to solid waste.

[Approved by Governor October 5, 2021. Filed with Secretary 
of State October 5, 2021.] 

legislative counsel
’
s digest 

SB 619, Laird. Organic waste: reduction regulations: local jurisdiction 
compliance.

Existing law requires the State Air Resources Board to complete, approve,
and implement a comprehensive strategy to reduce emissions of short-lived
climate pollutants in the state to achieve, among other things, a reduction 
in the statewide emissions of methane by 40%. Existing law requires the 
methane emissions reduction goals to include specified targets to reduce 
the landfill disposal of organics. Existing law requires the Department of 
Resources Recycling and Recovery, in consultation with the state board, to 
adopt regulations to achieve those targets for reducing organic waste in 
landfills, and authorizes those regulations to require local jurisdictions to 
impose requirements on generators or other relevant entities within their 
jurisdiction, to authorize local jurisdictions to impose penalties on generators 
for noncompliance, and to include penalties to be imposed by the department 
for noncompliance. 

This bill would authorize a local jurisdiction facing continuing violations 
that commence during the 2022 calendar year of those regulations to submit 
to the department no later than March 1, 2022, a notification of intent to 
comply, as prescribed. For violations of the regulations that are disclosed 
in a notification that is approved by the department, the bill would require 
the department to waive administrative civil penalties for the violations if 
the local jurisdiction implements the actions proposed in the notification to 
remedy the violations. The bill would authorize the department, 
notwithstanding those regulations, to establish any maximum compliance 
deadline in a corrective action plan that it determines to be necessary and 
appropriate under the circumstances for the correction of a violation of the 
regulations. The bill would authorize the department to adopt emergency
regulations it determines to be necessary to implement and enforce these 
provisions.

93

STATE OF CALIFORNIA

AUTHENTICATED 
ELECTRONIC LEGAL MATERIAL

24



The people of the State of California do enact as follows: 

SECTION 1. Section 42652.5 of the Public Resources Code is amended 
to read: 

42652.5. (a)  The department, in consultation with the State Air
Resources Board, shall adopt regulations to achieve the organic waste
reduction goals for 2020 and 2025 established in Section 39730.6 of the 
Health and Safety Code. The regulations shall comply with all of the 
following:

(1)  May require local jurisdictions to impose requirements on generators 
or other relevant entities within their jurisdiction and may authorize local 
jurisdictions to impose penalties on generators for noncompliance. 

(2)  Shall include requirements intended to meet the goal that not less 
than 20 percent of edible food that is currently disposed of is recovered for 
human consumption by 2025. 

(3)  Shall not establish a numeric organic waste disposal limit for 
individual landfills. 

(4)  May include different levels of requirements for local jurisdictions 
and phased timelines based upon their progress in meeting the organic waste
reduction goals for 2020 and 2025 established in Section 39730.6 of the 
Health and Safety Code. The department shall base its determination of 
progress on relevant factors, including, but not limited to, reviews conducted 
pursuant to Section 41825, the amount of organic waste disposed compared 
to the 2014 level, per capita disposal rates, the review required by Section 
42653, and other relevant information provided by a jurisdiction. 

(5)  May include penalties to be imposed by the department for 
noncompliance. If penalties are included, they shall not exceed the amount 
authorized pursuant to Section 41850. 

(6)  Shall take effect on or after January 1, 2022, except the imposition 
of penalties pursuant to paragraph (1) shall not take effect until two years 
after the effective date of the regulations.

(b)  A local jurisdiction may charge and collect fees to recover the local 
jurisdiction’s costs incurred in complying with the regulations adopted 
pursuant to this section. 

(c)  A local jurisdiction facing continuing violations of the regulations
adopted pursuant to subdivision (a) that commence during the 2022 calendar 
year may submit to the department a notification of intent to comply, as 
described in this section. Upon approval by the department, and 
implementation by the local jurisdiction, of a notification of intent to comply 
that meets the requirements of subdivision (e), a local jurisdiction may be 
eligible for both of the following:

(1)  Administrative civil penalty relief for the 2022 calendar year pursuant 
to subdivision (d). 

(2)  A corrective action plan pursuant to Section 18996.2 of Title 14 of 
the California Code of Regulations.

(d)  (1)  For violations of the regulations that are disclosed in a notification 
of intent to comply that is approved by the department as meeting the 

93

— 2 — Ch. 508

25



requirements of subdivision (e), the department shall waive administrative
civil penalties under paragraph (5) of subdivision (a) during the 2022 
calendar year if, and administrative civil penalties shall not accrue under 
paragraph (5) of subdivision (a) during the 2022 calendar year if, the local 
jurisdiction implements the proposed actions according to the schedule 
proposed pursuant to paragraph (4) of subdivision (e). 

(2)  For violations that commence during the 2022 calendar year and 
continue into the 2023 calendar year, administrative civil penalties may 
begin accruing as of January 1, 2023. Those administrative civil penalties 
accruing on and after January 1, 2023, shall be waived upon complete 
compliance with the terms of a corrective action plan pursuant to Section 
18996.2 of Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations.

(3)  If a local jurisdiction fails to adhere to the proposed actions and 
schedule described in a notification of intent to comply pursuant to paragraph 
(4) of subdivision (e), the department may revoke its approval of the 
notification of intent to comply and impose administrative civil penalties 
for violations occurring during the 2022 calendar year retroactive to the 
date of violation. 

(4)  Notwithstanding any proposed actions and schedule provided by a 
local jurisdiction in an approved notification of intent to comply pursuant 
to paragraph (4) of subdivision (e), the department may instead address 
through a corrective action plan any violations disclosed in that notification 
that may take more than 180 days to correct. Under those circumstances, 
the proposed actions and schedule provided pursuant to an approved
notification of intent to comply pursuant to paragraph (4) of subdivision (e) 
shall control until a corrective action plan is finalized. 

(e)  The department shall approve a notification of intent to comply if the 
department determines the notification meets the requirements of this 
subdivision. A notification of intent to comply shall be in writing, adopted 
by formal resolution by the governing body of the local jurisdiction, and 
filed with the department no later than March 1, 2022. The notification of 
intent to comply shall include, at a minimum, all of the following:

(1)  A description, with specificity, of the continuing violations. 
(2)  A detailed explanation of the reasons, supported by documentation, 

why the local jurisdiction is unable to comply.
(3)  A description of the impacts of the COVID-19 pandemic on 

compliance.
(4)  A description of the proposed actions the local jurisdiction will take

to remedy the violations within the timelines established in Section 18996.2 
of Title 14 of the California Code of Regulations with a proposed schedule 
for doing so. The proposed actions shall be tailored to remedy the violations 
in a timely manner.

(f)  The department shall respond in writing to a local jurisdiction within 
45 business days of receiving a notification of intent to comply with an 
approval, disapproval, request for additional information, or timeline for a 
decision on approval or disapproval. If the department disapproves the 
notification of intent to comply due to the notification not meeting the 

93

Ch. 508— 3 — 

26



requirements of subdivision (e), the department shall include in the response 
a justification for the disapproval.

(g)  Notwithstanding Section 18996.2 of Title 14 of the California Code 
of Regulations, the department may establish any maximum compliance 
deadline in a corrective action plan that it determines to be necessary and 
appropriate under the circumstances for the correction of a violation of the 
regulations adopted pursuant to subdivision (a). 

(h)  (1)  The department may adopt regulations it determines to be 
necessary to implement and enforce the changes made to this section by 
Senate Bill 619 of the 2021–22 Regular Session as emergency regulations.

(2)  Emergency regulations adopted pursuant to paragraph (1) shall be 
adopted in accordance with Chapter 3.5 (commencing with Section 11340) 
of Part 1 of Division 3 of Title 2 of the Government Code, and for purposes 
of that chapter, including Section 11349.6 of the Government Code, the 
adoption of these regulations is an emergency and shall be considered by 
the Office of Administrative Law as necessary for the immediate preservation
of the public peace, health, safety, and general welfare. Notwithstanding 
Chapter 3.5 (commencing with Section 11340) of Part 1 of Division 3 of 
Title 2 of the Government Code, emergency regulations adopted by the 
department pursuant to paragraph (1) shall be filed with, but not be repealed 
by, the Office of Administrative Law and shall remain in effect until January 
1, 2024. 

O

93

— 4 — Ch. 508

27


	10-21 Financials
	10-12-21 Regular Board Meeting Minutes Draft (1) (1)[8593]
	Staff Report Resolution 21-03
	RECOMMENDATION:  Approve Resolution 21-03
	FINANCIAL IMPACT: Possible increase to District Medical Insurance in the future, depending on retirees use of CalPERS as supplemental insurance with their Medicare.
	BACKGROUND:
	ATTACHMENTS:

	Resolution No 21-03 Draft
	SB 1383 -  Staff Report 11.9.21(1)
	BACKGROUND:

	395b
	501b
	11-9-2021 Draft Regular Meeting Agenda.pdf
	BOARD OF DIRECTORS
	NOTICE & AGENDA




